
PRELIMINARY AGENDA  
REGULAR SESSION 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
North Plains Senior Center 

31450 NW Commercial Street 
Monday, November 3, 2014 – 7:00 P.M. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA:  (The items on the Consent Agenda are normally 

considered in a single motion. Any item may be removed for separate 
consideration upon request by any member of the Council.) 
A. Approval of regular session agenda 
B. Approval of minutes of 10/06/2014 Council meeting 
C. Approval of minutes of 10/29/2014 Special Meeting 

 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT: (Persons wishing to speak on matters not on the agenda may 

be recognized at this time.  Speakers must complete a “Public Comment Registration 
form” on the information table and return it to the City Recorder. You are not required 
to give your address when speaking to the City Council, only your name.  
Presentations are limited to five minutes.) 

   
6. PRESENTATION 

None Scheduled 
 

7. STAFF REPORTS 
 Staff reports will be provided by the Public Works Director, the Chief of Police and 

Library Director. 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING: 

None Scheduled 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Consider the waiver of fees for the use of Jessie Mays for the North Plains 
Community Garden Club 

B. Consider the waiver of fees for the use of Jessie Mays for the Holiday Jingle  
C. Consider the waiver of fees for the use of Jessie Mays for the North Plains Senior 

Center Crab Feed 
D. Discussion of Property Tax comparisons 
E. Consider the approval of Resolution No. 1856 Dedicate Surplus Equipment: one 

Kohler Generator and one Go4 Meter Reading Cart 
F. Review a Request for Qualifications for Planning Services 
G. Review of September 2014 Check Register 
H. Discuss Fireworks Display for 2015 Fourth of July Celebration 

 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 1 of 64



 
 
 
 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

A. Personnel Analysis with History requested by Mayor at 10/06/14 meeting 
 
11. ORDINANCES: 
 
 FIRST READING:   

None Scheduled 
 
SECOND READING: 
 
A. Ordinance No. 423— An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of North Plains, 

Oregon, Establishing a Tax on the Sale of Marijuana and Marijuana-Infused 
Products in the City of North Plains and Adding a New North Plains Municipal 
Code Subchapter 2.30. This item is for second reading and adoption. (First 
reading was at a Special City Council Meeting on October 29, 2014.) 

 
12. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
13. COUNCIL REPORTS 

A. Council reports will be provided by the Mayor and City Councilors on meetings 
attended and other items. 

B. November 2014 Council Calendar 
  

14. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 Fundraiser Country Dance for Food Pantry at Jessie Mays Community Hall on 

Saturday, November 8 from 7:30-11:00 p.m. 
 Veterans Day, Tuesday, November 11: City Offices closed. 
 Thanksgiving Holiday, Thursday, November 27 and Friday, November 28: City 

Offices closed. 
  
15. ADJOURNMENT: 

***** 
North Plains City Council meetings are accessible for disabled individuals.  The City will also 
endeavor to provide services for persons with impaired hearing or vision and other services, 
if requested, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.  To obtain services, please call City Hall 
at (503) 647-5555  

***** 
 

The following City Council Meetings are scheduled to be held at the North Plains 
Senior Center, 31450 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon. 

 
 

The meetings will be held on the following dates at 7:00 p.m.: 
 

Monday, November 17, 2014 Monday, December 1, 2014 Monday, December 15, 2014 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 2 of 64



CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MINUTES REGULAR SESSION 

North Plains Senior Center 
31450 NW Commercial Street 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor David Hatcher called the Regular Session of the City 
Council to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Hatcher led the flag salute.  
 
3. ROLL CALL: Mayor David Hatcher, Council President Teri Lenahan, Councilors: 

Charlynn Newton, Michael Broome, Robert Kindel, Jr., and Glen Warren 
 

Excused: Michael Demagalski 
 

Staff present: City Manager Martha DeBry, Chief of Police Bill Snyder; Public Works 
Director Blake Boyles; Library Director Debra Brodie; Finance Director Rachael 
Lembo; City Recorder Margaret Reh 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA: 

A. Approval of regular session agenda 
B. Approval of minutes of 09/15/2014 Council meeting 

 
Motion by Broome and seconded by Warren to approve the Consent Agenda. The motion 
was approved unanimously. 
 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 
Fran Cotton, 30941 NW Pacific Street, addressed the Council regarding traffic issues on 
Pacific Street. She stated she is seeing an increase of cars traveling down the road and a 
majority of them are speeding. Cotton wanted to alert Council of the safety issue. She stated 
there is only one speed limit sign when traveling westerly just after you turn off Glencoe. 
Boyles stated there are about 900 trips per day between Main and Glencoe on Pacific. 
Boyles also stated that there are not a lot of speed limit signs throughout town, because all 
city streets are a 25 mph limit. It is the county roads—Glencoe, North Avenue and Gordon, 
that have the higher speed limits. Discussion ensued. Staff will look into some options. 
 
6. PRESENTATIONS: 

None scheduled 
 
7. STAFF REPORTS: 
 
Public Works Director.  Blake Boyles reported they have received surveys came in for 
Wascoe Street project. The result is that we will not be eligible for a Community 
Development Block Grant for this project. 
 
The Public Works crews have finished the crack sealing project. They have gone through 
3000 pounds of sealing materials. All the streets south of Commercial have been done. 
 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 3 of 64



Boyles has purchased the snow plow that the Council approved at the last meeting and the 
leaf vacuum should be in next week.  Boyles is working on the verbiage to add to the 
website and the newsletter explaining what will be acceptable to put out at the curb for the 
leaf vacuum. 
 
Hatcher asked about the status for training opportunities for Emergency Preparedness 
Training. Boyles stated he e-mailed Council members of the CERT training opportunity 
coming up in November. This would be a great opportunity to get the ball rolling for training. 
Each individual would need to register themselves. Hatcher asked that he resend that e-
mail. The training is open to the public and will take place at the Cherry Street fire station 
located in Hillsboro off of Cornelius Pass Road. 
 
Chief of Police. Chief Snyder stated the police department will be participating in CPR 
training on Friday.  
 
Snyder wanted to alert Council that as the new housing developments get into full swing 
there may be an uptick in late night crimes. We may start to see items being removed from 
construction trailers. There may also be other items that go missing such as lumber and 
materials from the construction sites. Councilor Warren stated that he has known Polygon to 
provide their own security on their construction sites. It is possible they may use their own 
security for the Sunset Ridge development. 
 
Also with the increase in population on the horizon, Snyder was inquiring what the Council’s 
thoughts and plans are for the police department. Hatcher stated with an increase in homes 
there will be an increase in the tax base which will could help the Police department.  
 
Council reviewed the statistical report submitted by Snyder. Hatcher asked about the thefts 
that were reported. Hatcher thought the culprits had been caught. Snyder explained that 
individuals are arrested and released and there are also more people that step up into the 
role of a thief. The recent theft reported is still an open case.  
 
Lenahan asked Snyder to elaborate a bit more on the body worn cameras that he 
mentioned in his staff report. Discussion ensued. Lenahan wants Snyder to do more 
research on the body worn cameras and report back to the Council. 
 
Library Director.  Debra Brodie stated the third annual Lucky Barcode contest just ended. 
Patrons enjoyed stopping in to see if they were a winner. The library had 34 winners this 
September. One of the choices in prizes for the Lucky Barcode winners was a bag of apples 
donated by Mark and Pat Susbauer of Mason Hill Farms. 
 
Long time North Plains’ school teacher, Barbara Summey, has recently retired from teaching 
and is now volunteering at the library. She will be helping out with story time. 
 
The genealogy class is full. Staff has started a waiting list of those still interested. Kindel 
stated that the class was mentioned at the Historical Society meeting in October. There 
were many who were interested in the genealogy class being offered by the library. This 
class could be repeated if there is enough interest. 
 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 4 of 64



Members of the Friends of the Library and the Library Board attended the last Parks Board 
meeting to give input to the Board of what the library’s needs and wants are in regards to 
the remodel of the Jessie Mays Community Hall. 
 
Brodie credited Boyles with the perking up of the library by having some of the old, dying 
plants removed and new plants planted. 
 
Brodie stated the library is excited about new residents coming to town. She is hoping to see 
the Welcome Wagon program be activated again.  It will be important to welcome new 
residents and inform them about the library and other resources and businesses in town. 
Discussion ensued on the status of the Welcome Wagon. 
 
Kindle also mentioned a maps lecture taking place in Hillsboro at the library.  These maps 
are from about 300-400 years ago. The lecturer is a map guru and is available for anyone 
who may be interested. 
 
Finance Director: Rachael Lembo gave an update on the finance/front office staff. There 
have been many changes with the elimination of a full time Account Clerk in July.  The first 
three months have been hard. Staff has been working on time management and a 
delineation of duties. During these three months staff have streamlined processes and 
figured out how to complete tasks more efficiently. Lembo had high praises for her staff 
which includes Sarah Baker, Sierra White and Margaret Reh. She stated they have truly 
gelled as a team and work together well.  
 
Lembo expressed her appreciation to the Council for the effort they put into studying the 
monthly check register. With a small staff it is sometimes difficult to define a segregation of 
duties. By the Council reviewing the monthly check register an extra layer of internal 
controls is provided. It is important the Council reviews this document looking for anything 
that looks odd and then to ask clarifying questions.  
 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 None Scheduled 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Discussion of Unaudited FY 2013-14 Actuals 
 
Lembo presented the unaudited actuals for Fiscal Year 2013-2014. The fiscal year has been 
closed and all accounts reviewed. An audit will begin in mid-October with our new auditor, 
Dennis Conner, CPA. Lembo walked the Council through each sheet explaining the final 
outcome of the funds. Council had a few questions. Lembo was able to address them. 
 

B. Discussion of First Quarter update of FY 2014-15 
 

Lembo presented the budget to actual financial reports for FY14-15 through September 
2014. Lembo explained the various line items in her staff report. She pointed out what has 
come through already and provided explanations for some of the line items that appear odd 
being it is just the end of the first quarter of this fiscal year, but they will work out into the 
next quarter. 
 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 5 of 64



C. Discussion on request for installation of flashing lights installed on Commercial 
Street. 

 
Staff received a request from Charles and Linda Rittenhouse asking that Council consider 
the installation of flashing lights at 311th and Commercial Street, similar to lights places at 
309th and North Avenue.   
 
Mr. and Mrs. Rittenhouse frequently use the intersection, and have found drivers are unable 
to see pedestrians in the hours close to dusk and evening hours in particular. Discussion 
ensued regarding options for various intersections and the costs associated with those 
various options. 
 

D. Discussion of Garlic Festival expenses for the City of North Plains 
 
Council had requested staff to present costs associated with various events that take place 
in the city throughout the year. Staff provided a spreadsheet reflecting the costs the City 
incurred with work and expenses associated with the 2014 Elephant Garlic Festival. 
Discussion ensued. This item was informational only. No action was required. 
 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

A. Adopt Resolution No. 1855 approving fiscal year 2014-15 budget transfer of 
appropriations to purchase a snow plow and a leaf vacuum. 

 
A request to purchase a leaf vacuum and a snow plow was discussed and approved at the 
September 15, 2014 Council meeting. Council agreed to transfer $1,000 from the Vehicle 
and Equipment Reserve Fund Contingency into Capital Outlay to allow for the purchase of 
both a snow plow and a leaf vacuum.  This resolution is the recording of that decision. 
Council had some questions regarding the logistics of the use of the leaf vacuum. Boyles 
will publish an article for the city newsletter and the city website regarding a new curbside 
leaf pick-up and drop-off program the City will be conducting. 
 
Motion by Kindel. Second by Lenahan to adopt Resolution Number 1855 approving fiscal 
year 2014-15 budget transfer of appropriations to purchase a snow plow and a leaf vacuum. 
The motion was approved unanimously. 
 
11. ORDINANCES: 
  

FIRST READING: 
 None Scheduled 
 

SECOND READING: 
 None Scheduled 
 
12. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
DeBry reminded the Council of the Chili Cook-off coming up on Thursday, October 16. It will 
have a different feel to it as State laws have changed regarding food prepared in non-
commercial kitchens. The Parks Board will have comment boards set up for the public to 
submit their thoughts and ideas for the remodel of Jessie Mays Community Hall. 
 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 6 of 64



DeBry is continuing discussion with ODOT regarding the Dant & Russell site and having 
access to it for a throughway to Gordon Road. 
 
DeBry had mentioned in her weekly report to Council if they would be interested in a 
temporary moratorium for annexation applications. This would allow time for the Council and 
Planning Commission to review the Comprehensive Plan and update it to reflect the citizens’ 
choice of the direction of development and growth in North Plains. This moratorium would 
only be until the Comprehensive Plan discussions and revision is complete. Discussion 
ensued. 
 
DeBry reported there may be another subdivision application submitted in the next few 
weeks for the property east of 307th. 
 
DeBry has spoken with Dick Thompson regarding a dance for the fundraiser for the canopy 
for the food pantry. The dance is scheduled for Saturday, November 8, 2014 from 7:30 to 
11:00 p.m. 
 
13. COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
Hatcher reminded the Councilors that the joint study session with the City Council and the 
Planning Commission to discuss the Comprehensive Plans is scheduled for Monday, 
October 13, 2014 at Jessie Mays Community Hall. 
 
14. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 

 Chili Cook-Off-6:00 p.m. at Jessie Mays Community Hall on Thursday, October 16 
 Pumpkin Fun Run festivities start at 9:00 at Jessie Mays Community Hall on 

Saturday, October 25 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT into Executive Session 
 
Council adjourned into Executive Session in accordance with ORS 192.660(2)(i) and 
192.660(8) regarding employee performance evaluations. 
 
Council came out of Executive Session at 10:43. Motion by Warren to not provide a pay step 
increase at this time. Broome second the motion. Vote was unanimous.  
 
16. ADJOURNMENT: Council adjourned the meeting at 10:50 p.m. 
 
 

 
______________________________ 
David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
 
_______________________________ Date approved ___________________ 
Margaret L. Reh, City Recorder 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 7 of 64



CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL  
MINUTES SPECIAL SESSION 

North Plains City Hall 
31360 NW Commercial Street 
Wednesday, October 29, 2014 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor David Hatcher called the Regular Session of the City 

Council to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Hatcher led the flag salute.  
 
3. ROLL CALL: Mayor David Hatcher, Council President Teri Lenahan, Councilors: 

Charlynn Newton, Michael Demagalski, Michael Broome, and Glen Warren 
Excused: Robert Kindel, Jr. 
Staff present: City Manager Martha DeBry, City Attorney Shane Abma, City 
Recorder Margaret Reh 
Visitors: Hannah Leone of the Oregonian 

 
4. ORDINANCES: 
  

FIRST READING: 
A. Introduction and first reading of Ordinance No. 423— An Ordinance of the City 

Council of the City of North Plains, Oregon, Establishing a Tax on the Sale of 
Marijuana and Marijuana-Infused Products in the City of North Plains and Adding 
a New North Plains Municipal Code Subchapter 2.30.   

 
DeBry presented the staff report for Ordinance No. 423. Discussion ensued. City Attorney 
Abma addressed the Councilors concerns. 
 
Motion by Demagalski. Second by Warren to make one change to Ordinance No. 423--
2.30.020 Definitions to read: Director means the Finance Manager or his/her designee and 
then to read Ordinance No. 423 by title only for the first time. 
 

A. Hatcher read Ordinance No. 423 an Ordinance of the City Council of the City of 
North Plains, Oregon, Establishing a Tax on the Sale of Marijuana and Marijuana-
Infused Products in the City of North Plains and Adding a New North Plains 
Municipal Code Subchapter 2.30.   

 
SECOND READING: 

 None Scheduled 
 
5. ADJOURNMENT: Council adjourned the meeting at 6:25 p.m. 
 

 
______________________________ 
David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
_______________________________ Date approved ___________________ 
Margaret L. Reh, City Recorder 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 8 of 64



    City of North Plains 

Public Works Department 

10/30/2014 

TO:   Martha DeBry, City Manager 
  City Council 
  Department Heads 
 
FROM:  Blake Boyles, Public Works Director 

SUBJECT: DEPARTMENT REPORT  

 

 P&W Glencoe crossing coordination (Wash Co. looking at funding methods) 

 Tank cleaning scheduled for November 14 

 Sunset Ridge Subdivision coordination 

 McKay Fields Subdivision coordination 

 PGE lighting work in new subdivisions 

 Washington Co. design work West Union Rd sidewalk connectivity 

Public Works Crews are working on the following projects/tasks: 

 Equipment Maintenance – winterizing mower- crack sealing pot- 

 Crack sealing 

 Cross Connection  

 Locates 

 Assembly of snow plow which was purchased 

 Service installation 

 Water samples 

 Mowing 

 Park Maintenance 

 Construction inspection (North Ave and Pacific St McKay Fields, Sunset Ridge 

 Landscape winterizing-cutting of ornamental grass on Main St 

 

 

 

Future reports will include tasks accomplished and those pending. If there is any other information you may 

want to see in the report, please let me know.- 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 9 of 64



City of North Plains - Library Department – November 3, 2014 
 
TO: Martha DeBry, City Manager, and to City Council Members 
FROM: Debbie Brodie, Library Director 
SUBJECT: DEPARTMENT REPORT 
 
Win Your Holiday Tree from the Library.  The Wizard of Oz upside down spinning tree 
that was featured last holiday season in the Library will be given to the winner of a raffle 
to begin on November 1.  Tickets will be $1 each or 6 for $5.  The winning ticket will be 
drawn on Monday, November 24, and the tree (and legs belonging to the Wicked Witch 
of the West) will be available for pick-up on the two days before Thanksgiving. 
 

 
 
Storytimes.  Children ages 0-6 are invited to participate every Wednesday at 11:30 a.m. 
in the children's section of the Library. 
 November 5 Storytime with Miss Marion:  Colors Galore 
 November 12 Storytime with Teacher Barbara:  Oceans 
 November 19 Special Guest Storytime:  Fairytale Princess 
 November 26 Storytime with Youth Librarian Jackie:  Cats 
 
Writers’ Group.  Share your writing projects and receive feedback from peers on 
Thursday, November 6 at 6:30 p.m.  New members are welcome to join.  (This is not a 
teacher/trainer-led class.) 
 
First Friday Flick – Join us on the first Friday of each month at the Jessie Mays 
Community Hall at 6 p.m. for a FREE movie showing.  On Friday, November 7, come 
see Maleficent, a PG family action adventure by Walt Disney Studios in which the king’s 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 10 of 64



daughter Aurora, cursed by the vengeful fairy Maleficent, is found to hold the key to peace 
in the kingdom and peace for Maleficent herself. 
 
Super Saturday.  Once per month during the school year, the Library hosts free, hour-
long performances for children and their families held at the Jesse Mays Community Hall.  
On Saturday, November 8 at 1 p.m., staff from the Rice Northwest Museum of Rocks 
and Minerals will bring amazing rocks and fossils to share and will offer an interactive 
activity in which everyone is welcome to participate. 
 
LEGO Palooza!  Monday, November 10 is a No School Day.  Come to Jessie Mays 
Community Hall and use your imagination to make fantastic LEGO creations.  Drop in 
between 11 a.m. and 3 p.m.  Kids, teens, and adults are welcome to the Library's first 
LEGO Palooza!  We will provide the LEGOs (for ages 6 and up) and DUPLOs (for ages 
3 and up), so please leave yours at home and ours at Jessie Mays! 
 
Friends of the Library.  There will be a general meeting of the Friends on Monday, 
November 10 at the Library from 7:30-9 p.m.  New members are welcome to attend. 
 
Art Exhibits.  The art exhibit on display in November and December, the Library will 
feature a variety of images by photographer Charlie Hyman that focus on the west coast 
and on the fall and winter seasons.  Hyman lives in a small town south of Portland, and 
he spends many vacations traveling with his wife around the country in his camper, taking 
pictures.  He has been photographing since he was about seven years old.  “Grand 
landscapes and up-close details capture my attention most often, but I enjoy 
photographing all subjects.  I’m also drawn to lines, textures, and geometric shapes, 
especially around cities.  I love natural subjects and try my best to show them in an 
interesting and captivating way.”  Quote from the artist’s website:  
http://www.charliehymanphoto.org/about.html.  A free, public reception will be held for the 
artist on Friday, November 14, from 6-7:30 p.m. at the Library.  Refreshments will be 
served. 
 
Quilt Display.  The quilt on display over the checkout desk throughout the month of 
November is a Grandmother's Flower Garden set in Garden Path pattern (the green 
pieces).  This prize-winner was hand-quilted by area resident Jo Ann Tannock.  It is a 
documented quilt in the Oregon Quilt Project, organized by a committee of the Willamette 
Heritage Center (Salem) and dedicated to documenting, collecting, and preserving 
information about the quilts and quilt-makers of Oregon, past and present. 
 
Library Book Club.  Join us on Wednesday, November 26 at 7:30 p.m. at the Library 
to discuss the novel, The Boys in the Boat: Nine Americans and Their Epic Quest for Gold 
at the 1936 Berlin Olympics, by Daniel James Brown.  "This book tells the story of the 
University of Washington's 1936 eight-oar crew and their epic quest for an Olympic gold 
medal, a team that transformed the sport and grabbed the attention of millions of 
Americans. It traces the story of the team that defeated elite rivals at Hitler's 1936 Berlin 
Olympics, sharing the experiences of their enigmatic coach, a visionary boat builder, and 
a homeless teen rower.”-- Provided by the publisher. 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 11 of 64

http://www.charliehymanphoto.org/about.html


 

Agenda Item. 9A  

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:   October 14, 2014 
To:  City Council 
From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 
Subject: Waiver of fees at Jessie Mays Community Hall for the North Plains 

Community Garden Club  

 
Request:   Council waive rental and cleaning fees for the use of Jessie Mays 
Community Hall by the North Plains Community Garden Club. 
 
Background:  The North Plains Community Garden Club has used Jessie Mays 
for monthly meeting for many years.  Each year the Council has waived the fees 
for their meetings, as they are a non-profit that assists with the beautification of 
the City. 
 
The Garden Club is also requesting the use of the tennis courts for the annual 
plant sale which is on the first Saturday of the May (the 2nd in 2015.)   
 
While they Police Department has tried to assist with the monitoring of the plants 
on display overnight prior to the event, it cannot commit that staff resources will be 
available for this purpose.  Every effort will be made to assign a reserve officer to 
work that evening.   
 
Fiscal Impact:  The estimated rental fees for monthly meetings is $120. A 
cleaning fee is not applicable if the rental fee is waived. 
 
Recommendation:  Council approve the waiver of fees.  

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 12 of 64



 

Agenda Item. 9B  

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:   October 14, 2014 
To:  City Council 
From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 
Subject: Waiver of fees at Jessie Mays Community Hall for the Jingle Thru 

North Plains 

 
Request:   Council waive rental and cleaning fees for the use of Jessie Mays 
Community Hall by the North Plains Events Association on December 4, 2014. 
 
Background:  The North Plains Events Association consists of community 
members interested in raising funds for community events and other civic 
activities.  Principals in the Events Association include Patti Burns, Stewart King, 
Russ Sheldon, Sherrie Simmons, as well as Mayor David Hatcher and Councilor 
Teri Lenahan. 
 
The Events Association and Loch Lolly Christmas Forest intends to host the 
2014 Jingle Thru North Plains on December 4th.  As in past years, Ms. Burns will 
assist with the organization of parade, while the City assists with the creation of 
the route, street closures and leading the parade.  Once the parade has ended 
participants can enjoy cookies, cider and hot chocolate donated by Loch Lolly 
Christmas Forest.  Admission to the event is free, and it raises no revenues. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  For the Jingle Thru North Plains, the City would be waiving 
approximately $140 in rental fees and a $100 cleaning fee.   
 
Recommendation:  Council approve the waiver of fees.  

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 13 of 64



 

Agenda Item. 9C  

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  October 14, 2014 
To: City Council 
From: City Manager Martha DeBry 
Subject: Waiver of fees at Jessie Mays Community Hall for North Plains Senior 

Center Crab Feed fundraiser being held on Saturday, January 17, 2015 

 
Request:   Council waive rental, cleaning and OLCC fees for the use of Jessie Mays 
Community Hall by the North Plains Senior Center on January 17, 2015. 
 
Background:  An annual crab feed fund raiser is scheduled for Saturday, January 
17, 2015.  This event provides funding to the North Plains Senior Center. Some 
years the event has involved the service of alcohol, which requires an administrative 
approval by the City of North Plains. 
 
In the past the City has waived all fees related to the event in support of the 
fundraiser. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  The City would be waiving approximately $394 in fees.  Rental of 
the hall would typically generate $280 for 8 hours.  The cleaning fee is $100.  The 
OLCC temporary permit fee is $14.   
 
Recommendation:  Council approve the waiver of fees. 
 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 14 of 64



 

Agenda Item No: 9D     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  October 20, 2014 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Property Tax Comparisons 

Request:  Council review the recent information regarding property taxes. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  The County has provided tax information for this year.  Finance 
Manager Rachael Lembo has prepared a comparison of the current year (FY14-15) 
property tax per the county’s tax certification, and a comparison to prior years. 
 
In general it is good news. The total assessed valuation for the City has increased by 
9% and we anticipate about an additional $32,000 in General Fund Revenue and 
another $40,000 in Urban Renewal revenue. The largest increase in the General Fund 
was from the reclassification of land from Farmland to developed land (most likely 
Sunset Ridge) the remainder would be associated with infill projects. 
 
Environmental Issues:  None 
 
Recommendation:  This item is informational only. 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 15 of 64



City of North Plains and North Plains URA
Property taxes imposed 
Annual comparison

Perm Rate

0.2171%
Taxable Assessed 

Value less URA
Imposed Tax @ 

Perm Rate % Chg
Urban Renewal 

Excess
Division of Tax 

Revenue % Chg

FY2011‐12 158,841,396         151,907,267 329,821           6,934,129             87,566            
FY2012‐13 163,058,346         3% 155,627,481 337,898           2% 7,430,865             7% 94,196             8%
FY2013‐14 169,172,757         4% 160,951,759 349,458           3% 8,220,998             11% 103,737           10%
FY2014‐15 Budget 176,247,940         4% 167,204,842 363,035           4% 9,043,098             10% 114,111           10%
FY2014‐15 Actual 184,505,938         9% 172,567,255 374,678           7% 11,938,683           45% 144,629           39%

Imposed Tax Farmland Tax Revenue Uncollectible % Chg Imposed Revenue Uncollectible % Chg
FY2012‐13 337,906                 334,445         (3,461)              ‐1% 94,196                   91,534             (2,662)             ‐3%
FY2013‐14 349,460                 339,306         (10,154)            ‐3% 103,767                100,441           (3,326)             ‐3%
FY2014‐15 Budget 363,035                 352,500         (10,535)            ‐3% 114,111                100,000           (14,111)           ‐12%
FY2014‐15 Actual 374,678                 21,791               384,575         (11,894)            ‐3% 144,629                140,290           (4,339)             ‐3%

Data below provided by Washington County

Note: Assessed values prior to urban renewal reductions.

City of North Plains Assessed Value % Chg
2007/08 134,947,875        
2008/09 142,012,131         5%
2009/10 149,525,973         5%
2010/11 153,901,735         3%
2011/12 158,841,396         3%
2012/13 163,058,346         3%
2013/14 169,172,757         4%
2014/15 184,505,938         9%

URACity

City URA

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 16 of 64



 

Agenda Item No: 9E     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  November 3, 2014 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Public Works Director Blake Boyles 

Subject: Resolution No.1856 Declaring Surplus Equipment –Kohler model 
150RH0271 serial # 085863 and Go4 Meter Reading Cart 

Request:  Public Works would like to surplus the following equipment: 1) one of the two 
150KW Kohler generators that we acquired several years ago. By dedicating one as 
surplus it can be used as a trade in on a smaller quieter generator that can be used at 
events, instead of renting one; 2) the 1999 Go4 Meter Reading Cart. 
 
Background: In July of 2009 the City acquired two Kohler 150 KW generators for 
$1000 each from Tualatin Valley Water District. These generators were designed to be 
used when a power failure arose and we needed to use the pump at the pump house. 
 
The Go4 meter reading cart was obtained several years ago and used quite often up 
until approximately 2 years ago. Since that time it has been parked. 
 
Fiscal Impact: Funds collected from the sale will be placed in the Water Fund. 
 
Environmental Issues:  None 
 
Recommendation:  Council to approve Resolution No.1856 to declare as surplus 
property one of the 150KW generators in stock and the 1999 Go4 Meter Reading Cart. 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 17 of 64



RESOLUTION NO. 1856 
  

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, 
OREGON, DECLARING EQUIPMENT AS SURPLUS 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department has determined to dispose of one 
150KW Kohler generator and one Go4 Meter Reading Cart that were acquired by the 
Public Works Department, and request a formal declaration to dispose of this 
equipment; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council is asked to formally agree to declare this equipment 
as surplus property so it can be disposed of. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. That the 150KW Kohler generator and Go4 Meter Reading 
Cart is hereby declared surplus and authorized to be disposed 
of as surplus. 

 
Section 2. City staff is authorized to dispose of this equipment, approved 

by the City Manager and consistent with State law. 
 

Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon 
adoption by the City Council. 

 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of November, 2014. 

 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 
BY:  _____________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
BY:  ______________________________________ 

Margaret L. Reh, City Recorder 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 18 of 64



 

Agenda Item No: 9F     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  October 20, 2014 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Discussion of Request for Qualifications for Planning Services 

Request:  Council discuss planning service needs and funding. 
 
Background:  The Mayor has requested that an RFQ for Planning Services be 
presented to Council for discussion. The City has relied on staff to process most 
planning applications in recent years.  A contract planner has been used for complex 
and expedited projects.   
 
Included in Council’s packet is a breakdown of planning expenses and consultants from 
2004 to September 2014.  The City has relied heavily on consultant planners for routine 
applications until 2012, when a more aggressive effort was made to align planning 
revenues and consultant expenses.  Because the past few years have not been 
representative of planning activity in North Plains, the City should anticipate that 
consultant expenses will be somewhere in the $40,000-$50,000 range for routine 
planning services as was typical in 2006-2011.  (The City of Banks which is of a 
comparable size budgeted $45,000 in 2012 for land use planning services at a time 
when development was slow.  Because Banks is engaged in planning processes that 
involve expansion of its Urban Growth Boundary and annexations it has increased its 
community development expenses to $168,400 and $166,000 in 2014 and 2015 
respectively.)   
 
A table showing the number of planning permit applications for 2000-2014 is included in 
the packet.  It shows the current upswing in permit applications to levels seen in 2004-
2008 prior to the Great Recession.  
 
Between 2004-2012 approximately $60,000-$80,000 of staff expenses were attributed 
to planning.  The current budgeting process does not distinguish time spent between 
general fund activities (i.e. the City Manager’s time is not divided between planning, 
finance, police or public works.)  Staff estimates that $40,000-$50,000 would continue to 
appropriate if the City Manager’s and City Recorder’s time spent on administrative 
processes and Planning Commission.  As a general rule, staff will spend 10-20 hours in 
preparation for a commission meeting, in addition to time spent reviewing applications in 
detail.   

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 19 of 64



 
In order for planning to be a truly revenue neutral activity the full expense of the 
planning process must be built into fees.  This includes time spent adjusting plans and 
ordinances to process applications. This requires that the City make some assumptions 
about the types of applications that will be received, and then distribute all costs across 
the fee schedule over a period of time.  For example the City should estimate the 
number of subdivisions, annexation requests, lot line adjustments, variances or 
partitions in a year, and then add a premium to actual expenses to make planning 
revenue neutral.  This may result in extraordinarily high planning fees.  Unfortunately, 
since the City cannot control the timing or pace of applications, there remains a high 
likelihood that planning expenses will continue to exceed revenues in any given year.  
 
Because the October 20, 2014 Council meeting was cancelled, the RFQ was forwarded 
to planning firms with the intention of modifying the scope of work after Council 
discussion, if needed.  The RFQ process requires several months to complete, and staff 
issued the RFQ to expedite the process, in anticipation of the need to pursue an 
amendment of the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Fiscal Impact:  Retaining a contract planner will cost approximately $30,000 for the 
months of December 2014 - June 2015 to conduct routine planning application 
processes and attend Commission meetings.  Another $30,000 should be added to the 
estimated expense to perform work on the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Council can allocate $60,000 from the General Fund contingency of $100,000. These 
funds would be allocated to line item 110-465-330000 in the Planning budget.  Only a 
small portion of the cost is anticipated to be recovered in this fiscal year.  When Council 
engages a consultant the exact allocation amount can be determined and a resolution 
adopted. 
 
Environmental Issues:  None 
 
Recommendation:  Council discuss planning service needs and funding. 
 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 20 of 64



Planning Consultant Expenses 2004-2015 
Expense Line Item 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Dev Fee Exp $7,637  $27,715  $23,796  $36,085  $51,827                

Planning Exp $472  $366  $170  $386  $325                

Urb Res & Econ Dev $0  $0  $0  $0  $0                

Interchange and UR 
Master Plan 

$0  $0  $0  $0  $0                

Periodic Review $75  $0  $339  $0  $0                

UR Plan Exp $0  $0  $14,873  $11,696  $2,746                

Professional 
Services 

          $48,608  $28,527  $57,611  $24,254  $5,216  $5,526  $5,000  

                          

Total $8,184  $28,081  $39,178  $48,167  $54,898  $48,608  $28,527  $57,611  $24,254  $5,216  $5,526  $5,000  

Building Fees $6,745  $5,995  $6,290  $10,809  $4,925          $1,933      

Development Fees 
Collected 

$36,991  $86,840  $62,596  $59,932  $48,979  $55,250  $15,378  $35,057  $21,153  $22,982  $40,023  $6,403  

Total Planning 
Expense $129,680 $152,380 $117,548 $130,067 $135,478 $112,073 $93,758 $134,213 $114,527 $27,057 $12,500 469 

Difference between 
fees and expenses -$85,944 -$59,545 -$48,662 -$59,326 -$81,574 -$56,823 -$78,380 -$99,156 -$93,374 -$2,142 $27,523 $5,934 

 Items in red reflect planning and building fees combined.         

             

Expense Category 
Item 

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Personal Services 60,358 65,508 66,008 70,827 73,150 57,266 60,183 68,167 80,555 19,143 0 0 

Materials & 
Services 69,321 88,871 51,540 59,240 62,328 54,807 33,575 66,046 33,972 7,914 8,367 5,000 

Transfers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0     0 0 

 TOTAL 129,679 154,379 117,548 130,067 135,478 112,073 93,758 134,213 11,4527 27,057 8,367 5,000 

 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 21 of 64



Activity Type 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 

Annexation 3, C     3 4 4 1 1       

Comp Plan Amendment 3, C      1  3        

Conditional Use 3 1     1 1 1 1  1 1   1 

Design Review 3 5 4 4 5 6 4 2 2 4 1 4 5 3   

Fence 1                

Flood Plain Development 3 1      2 1   1 1 1 1 3 

Historic Overlay 2 or 3                

Home Occupation 2 1    2 1 5  3 4 2 4  2  

Lot Line Adjustment 2 2 5 3 2 2 2 1 5 4  1 2 1 2  

Mobile Home Park 3                

Non-Conforming Use 3 1    1 1      1    

Partition 2  3 2 2 1 4 2 4      2 2 

Sign permit 1                

Similar Use 3      1          

Significant Natural 
Resource 3           1 2 2 1 1 

Street Vacation 4      1  1        

Subdivision 3 1   3 3 1 5 4       2 

Subdivision Final Plat 3               2 

Subdivision Modification 2              2 4 

Subdivision Modification 3               1 

Temporary Use 1 1   2  2     1 2    

Variance 1 or 2 1  1 4 4 4 3 2  1 1 1 2 6 4 

Variance  3     2   1      1  

Zone Change 3   2   2          

Zone Code Amendment 3                

Appeal 3         2       

Appeal C                

Total Applications  14 12 12 18 24 29 25 25 15 6 12 19 9 17 20 

Pre-App Conferences  2   3 4 2 6 2 3  1   1  

 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 22 of 64



CITY OF NORTH PLAINS FEE SCHEDULE FISCAL YEAR 2014‐15
FEE FEE DESCRIPTION FEE TYPE FY2013‐14  FY2014‐15 

LAND USE, PLANNING
* Public Hearing
+ Admin Decision

1401 Annexation Deposit * Deposit                           10,000.00  10,000.00                         
1402 Annexation Election Deposit * Deposit                             9,000.00  9,000.00                           

Appeal of Administrative or Planning Commission Decision
1405 A. Appeal of Administrative or Plan Comm Decision * Fee                                218.00  315.00                              
1406 B. Appeal of Decision Additional Hearing  Fee                                326.00  375.00                              
1142 Appeal Hearing Transcripts ‐ City will provide digital audio recording Fee                                  16.00  16.00                                

Building Permits Land Use Approval
Residential Zone (R‐7.5, R‐5 and R‐2.5)
1415 A. Single Family Residence + Fee                                  46.00  70.00                                
1416 B. Multi‐Family Residence (Per Unit) + Fee                                  46.00  70.00                                
1417 C. Remodel/Alteration Any Residence + Fee                                  46.00  70.00                                
1418 D. Detached Accessory Structure 121 to 200 Square Feet (City does not review 

applications under 200 square feet)
+ Fee  NA  NA

1415 E.  Detached Accessory Structure Over 200 Square Feet + Fee                                  46.00  70.00                                
1420 F.  Demolition Any Structure + Fee                                  34.00  40.00                                
Commercial Zone (C‐1 and C‐2)
1425 A. Commercial New Structure  + Fee                                  49.00  70.00                                
1426 B. Remodel/Alteration Existing Structure  + Fee                                  49.00  70.00                                
1425 C. Detached Accessory Structure + Fee                                  49.00  70.00                                
1420 D. Demolition Any Structure + Fee                                  34.00  40.00                                
Industrial Zone (M‐1 and M‐2)
1430 A. Industrial New Structure  + Fee                                  49.00  70.00                                
1431 B. Remodel/Alteration Existing Structure + Fee                                  49.00  70.00                                
1430 C. Detached Accessory Structure + Fee                                  49.00  70.00                                
1420 D. Demolition Any Structure + Fee                                  34.00  40.00                                
1435 Change of Address request for reasons other than fire and life safety  Fee                                136.00  160.00                              

Conditional Use Permits
1440 A. Residential zone * Fee                                328.00  395.00                              
1441 B.  Commercial or industrial zone * Fee                                544.00  745.00                              
1442 C. Minor Alterations of Conditional Use Permits * Fee                                186.00  265.00                              

Comprehensive Plan Document/Map Amendments
1445 A. Legislative Amendment  * Deposit                             8,000.00  8,000.00                           
1446 B. Zone change only * Deposit                             5,000.00  5,000.00                           

S:\Forms\Fee Templates\Fee Schedule 2014‐2015 adopted 6‐2‐2014

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 23 of 64



CITY OF NORTH PLAINS FEE SCHEDULE FISCAL YEAR 2014‐15
FEE FEE DESCRIPTION FEE TYPE FY2013‐14  FY2014‐15 

Design Review
Residential Zone (R‐7.5, R‐5, R‐2.5, and NC)
1455 A.  Single family attached dwelling/duplex type III * Fee                                397.00  385.00                              
1456 B.  Multifamily 3 or more units * Fee                                940.00  970.00                              
Commercial and Industrial
1462 A.  Type II + Fee                                173.00  185.00                              
1463 B.  Type III * Fee                                879.00  890.00                              

Planned Use Development
1457 Planned Use Development (PUD) preliminary plan * Fee                             2,528.00  4,195.00                           

PUD Final development plan  Fee 2,685.00                           
PUD Modification ‐ major Fee 820.00                              
PUD Modification ‐ administrative 420.00                              

Fence Permits
1470 A.  Fence Permit (All Types and Zones) Fee                                  40.00  40.00                                

B. Fence Permit Variance ‐ Refer to Variance Permit +
Flood Plain Permits

1473 Flood Plain Fill Permit + Fee                             1,699.00  1,925.00                           
CLOMAR Letter to remove property from a flood plain + Fee 230.00                              

Historic Overlay District (Applies to Pythians, Lower, 379 Kaybern)
1475 A. Certificate of Appropriateness * Fee                                133.00  210.00                              
1476 B. Demolition Permit * Fee                                155.00  195.00                              

Home Occupation Permit
1485 Home Occupation Permit (R‐7.5, R‐5 and R‐2.5) +/* Fee                                  83.00  115.00                              

Land Partitions
1490 Land Partitions ‐ Street dedication * Fee                                669.00  640.00                              
1491 Land Partitions ‐ No street dedication * Fee                                331.00  400.00                              

Lot Line Adjustment
1505 Lot Line Adjustments + Fee                                202.00  275.00                              

Master Plans 
1506 Master Plan Refinement * Fee                             1,941.00  1,941.00                           
1507 Master Plan Review * Fee                             2,528.00  2,528.00                           

Mechanical Permits
1510 Mechanical Permits (All Types and Zones) + Fee                                  10.00  10.00                                

Non Conforming Use/Exceptions
1515 Non‐Conforming Use or Structure (All Zones)Reinstatement, Enlargement or 

Alteration of Use
* Fee                                 200.00  265.00                                

1525 Public Facility Standards Exception * Deposit                             3,500.00  3,500.00                           

S:\Forms\Fee Templates\Fee Schedule 2014‐2015 adopted 6‐2‐2014

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 24 of 64



CITY OF NORTH PLAINS FEE SCHEDULE FISCAL YEAR 2014‐15
FEE FEE DESCRIPTION FEE TYPE FY2013‐14  FY2014‐15 

Public Hearing Notice
1526 A.  Adjoining properties Fee                                  61.00  80.00                                
1527 B.  250 feet  Fee                                  90.00  115.00                              
1528 C.  City Wide Fee                                708.00  730.00                              
1529 D.  Publication in newspaper Argus Fee                                349.00  349.00                              
1530 E.  Publication in newspaper Oregonian Fee                                625.00  640.00                              

LID/Reimbursement District Formation
1535 Reimbursement District Formation * Fee                             8,070.00  8,070.00                           

Subdivisions
1545 A. Development Other Than Single Family * Fee                             2,528.00  2,880.00                           
1546 B. Extension of subdivision agreement * Fee                                146.00  180.00                              
1547 C. Subdivision Final Plat * Fee                             2,615.00  2,685.00                           
1548 D. Manufactured home parks and subdivisions * Fee                              3,372.00  4,000.00                             
1549 E. Modification of approved development plan ‐ Minor + Fee                                142.00  150.00                              
1550 F. Modification of approved development plan ‐ Major * Fee                             1,941.00  2,125.00                           
1551 G. Pre‐Application Conference (Major Projects) Fee                             1,171.00  1,420.00                           
1552 H. Preliminary Design Review (Engineer/Public Works) Fee                                727.00  890.00                              
1553 I. Preliminary (Tentative) Subdivision Plat * Fee                             4,480.00  4,785.00                           
1554 J. Conditions of Approval Modification ‐ Major Fee                                661.00  820.00                              
1555 K. Conditions of Approval Modification ‐ Minor Fee                                310.00  450.00                              

Sign Permits
1560 A.  New Permanent Sign Permit (All Types and Zones) +                                  32.00  45.00                                
1561 B.  Replacement Permanent Sign Permit (All Types and Zones) +                                  32.00  45.00                                
1562 C.  New Temporary Sign Permit (All Types and Zones) +                                  32.00  45.00                                

Significant Natural Resource Permit
1565 Significant Natural Resources Permit * Fee                             1,486.00  1,640.00                           
1570 Significant Natural Resource permit modification ‐ minor + Fee                                191.00  215.00                              

Similar Use Determination
1571 Similar Use Determination * Fee                                567.00  615.00                              

Street Changes
1540 Street Name Change * Fee                             6,883.00  6,883.00                           
1575 Street Dedication * Fee                             1,643.00  1,840.00                           
1580 Street Vacation * Fee                             1,441.00  1,675.00                           

Temporary Structure Permits
1585 A. Buildings not connected to water/sewer service + Fee                                  69.00  110.00                              
1590 B. Building connected to water/sewer service * Fee                                383.00  495.00                              
1591 C. Renewal of Temporary Structure Permit + Fee                                  45.00  45.00                                

S:\Forms\Fee Templates\Fee Schedule 2014‐2015 adopted 6‐2‐2014

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 25 of 64



CITY OF NORTH PLAINS FEE SCHEDULE FISCAL YEAR 2014‐15
FEE FEE DESCRIPTION FEE TYPE FY2013‐14  FY2014‐15 

Variance Permits
1595 A.  Administrative (Type I or II) + Fee                                105.00  145.00                              
1596 B. Requiring Planning Commission Hearing (type 3) * Fee                             1,078.00  1,115.00                           

Zoning
1495 Letter of zoning verification + Fee                                  15.00  20.00                                
1500 Letter of verification of compliance with zoning and development codes of an 

existing development
+ Fee                                 190.00  230.00                                

1592 Urban Growth Boundary Expansion Application * Deposit                           28,000.00  28,000.00                         
1597 Zoning and Development Code Interpretation + Fee                                291.00  390.00                              
1598 Zoning Development Code Amendments/Zone Change * Fee                             2,621.00  2,825.00                           

S:\Forms\Fee Templates\Fee Schedule 2014‐2015 adopted 6‐2‐2014

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 26 of 64



 

City of North Plains, Oregon Request for Qualifications (RFQ)  

Planning Services 
 
Overview 
 
The City of North Plains is soliciting statements of interest and qualifications from qualified 
firms to provide city planning services as an independent contractor.  The work includes a 
variety of routine and complex elements regarding current and long range planning for the 
City.   The firm or individuals must be able to perform all the duties of the City of North Plains’ 
contract City Planner as described throughout this RFQ.  The City Planner will work under the 
direction of the City Manager. 
  
As a result of this RFQ the City will select a top qualifier with whom to commence contract 
negotiations.  If negotiations are successful, the City will enter into a professional services 
contract. 
 
The City will consider a City Planner Services contract of three (3) years initially with an option 
to renew the contract for seven (7) additional one year periods upon mutual consent of both 
parties. The initial contract period is anticipated to start December 16, 2014.  The firm may 
submit revised fees for consideration annually.  The City retains the option to use alternative 
service methods and service providers when the City deems it appropriate. 
 
 
About the City of North Plains 
 
North Plains was incorporated in 1963.  It is a small rural town on the western edge of the 
Portland metropolitan region in Washington County.  Current population is 2,017.  The City has 
a City Manager-Council form of government.  The Council consists of a directly elected Mayor 
and 6 elected councilors.  The Planning Commission consists of 7 appointed members.  The City 
has 8 fulltime and 20 part-time employees providing a range of services from fiscal 
administration, public works services, police and library.  The City also contracts for a City 
Engineer (Murray Smith and Associates) and City Attorney (Beery, Elsner and Hammond).   
 
The City has started a process to update its Comprehensive Plan which was adopted in 2000.  
Initially, the City intended to only update factual information contained in the plan.  In short 
order staff realizes many aspects of the City’s growth and State laws have changed, and a 
broader review of the plan must occur.  City Council would like to create a clear vision for the 
next 20 years.  A key concern for the community is retaining its rural character while remaining 
a few miles from the City of Hillsboro which is an urban area with large employers.   
 
Population growth has been much slower than anticipated in 2000, due in part to voter 
rejection of numerous annexation proposals.  Balancing the interests of the rural community 
and need for compact development will be a focus of future planning.   

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 27 of 64



 
The City has approximately 120 acres of undeveloped land remaining in the existing Urban 
Growth Boundary.  It is anticipated that annexation requests will be initiated in the near 
future.  These would be subject to voter approval.   
 
During the Great Recession, planning and building all but stopped in the community, and to 
save expenses planning applications were administered by full-time staff with the assistance of 
a contract planner.  As the work volume has begun to increase again, the City recognizes the 
need to obtain professional consultant services to efficiently guide the progress of the 
Comprehensive Plan and future subdivision applications.  In this regard, the City would like to 
establish a long-term relationship with a planner(s) to guide the gradual growth of the 
community.  It is unknown how many hours of service will be required under the agreement 
with the City Planner.  At a minimum 20 hours per month should be anticipated for 
preparation of Planning Commission reports and attendance at meetings.  During the first 
years of this contract as the Comprehensive Plan update is anticipated to require an additional 
20-40 hours monthly to conduct public outreach including visioning processes, interact with 
Council, Commission and staff and prepare materials.  
 
The City can provide work space for a planner including a phone and computer, however 
physical presence at City offices is not a requirement of this contract.  Regular office hours are 
not required at present, but may be requested in the future.  
 
The City’s Urban Renewal Agency (URA) was founded in 2006, and revision of the goals and 
programs of the URA will also be a part of the work scope.  
 
 
Statement of Work 
The City intends to contract for array of planning services, ranging from processing of routine 
applications to complex review of annexation and zone changes.  Services shall be contracted 
on an on-call basis, though it is expected that the City Planner will be available for consultation 
for routine matters. 
 
The person/firm selected to fulfill the responsibilities of City Planner shall:  
 
a. Work with the City to implement its vision and growth objectives. 

b. Participate in the management and coordination of planning projects including 
comprehensive planning, area planning and development, and transportation, 
redevelopment, environmental, and other planning related concerns of the City. 

c. Research, prepare and present staff reports and findings on various land use applications 
for City Council and Planning Commission. Prepare and attend meetings, provide 
technical information and advice, perform follow-up and research as necessary, and make 
recommendations. 

d .  Interpret ordinances, zoning regulations and other city, county, state, and federal 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 28 of 64



regulations relating to zoning, subdivision and development issues.  

e. Consult and/or prepare methodologies related to comprehensive planning (e.g. buildable 
lands inventories, population projections, etc.). 

f. Respond to inquiries from the general public regarding rules and procedures to land use, 
land development and zoning, and general City development policies and procedures. 

g. Conduct pre-application conferences with potential applicants, providing information 
about the development process regarding: site plan review, subdivisions, planned unit 
developments, conditional uses, variances, minor land partitions, lot line adjustments and 
rezoning. 

h. Perform field investigations and gather, analyze, interpret, and report on various land use 
and land characteristic data regarding land use applications. 

i. Perform code review of development proposals and determine whether applications 
satisfy development regulations, track actual implementation and ensure work meets the 
approved application requirements. 

j. Evaluate environmental information and recommends mitigation measures to reduce 
adverse impacts of development. 

k. May consult to, prepare, and write grant applications including components relating to 
geography, maps, plats, site plans, etc. 

l. Maintain planning data as developed or assigned. Prepare maps, charts, posters and 
slides for presentations and public hearings. 

m. Work with outside entities on planning, zoning, development issues and design review. 

n. Manage and perform other projects, functions, and tasks, as agreed upon. 

o. Maintain cooperative working relationships with City staff, elected officials, commission, 
other organizations and the general public. 

p. Write staff reports for the Planning Commission and City Council. 

q. Attend land use application, public hearings, and City Council and Planning Commission 
meetings, and may provide in depth presentations. 

r. Maintain current knowledge of municipal codes related to zoning enforcement. 

s. Provide consulting and assistance to the City in code enforcement actions. 

t. Attend various meetings as a City representative, may represent the City in various 
capacities on panels, committees, legal hearings, task forces and relevant forums as 
requested. 

u. Have knowledge of wetlands and their buffers, floodways and floodplains, and 
groundwater resources. 

v. Perform other related duties and special projects as assigned. 

 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 29 of 64



 
Request for Qualifications Time Line (Tentative) 
 
Issue request for Qualifications October 21, 2014  
Receive Qualification and Interest Statements November 4, 2014 
Evaluation Qualifications and Interest Statements  November 5-14, 2014 
Interview with 3 best qualified persons/firms November 19, 2014 
Recommendation to City Council December 1, 2014 
Complete contract negotiations with successful firm December 8, 2014 
Present contract to City Council for approval December 15, 2014 
 
 
Content of Responses 
 
Responses to this Request for Qualifications must be complete, timely and submitted in 
conformance with RFQ specifications, including addressing all items listed below: 
 
a. Describe your firm’s planning background and history, including the number of years in 

business. 

b .  Provide a proposal for rendering City Planning services as indicted in this RFQ.  

c. Describe the training and experience (including years) of the person(s) who would be 
providing city planning services, as well as principals that will have oversight.  

d. Describe your firm’s experience and current practice in providing planning services to 
governmental entities, including the names of current government clients.   

e. Describe the workload capacity of your firm and type of work the firm would be able to 
absorb.  Include any limitations you would foresee in your firm’s ability to handle certain 
types of work, or work capacity limitations. 

f. Describe your firm’s experience and expertise as it specifically relates to land use and 
zoning. 

g. Describe your firm’s staff and resource capacity to respond to time-sensitive or short 
notice requests and/or complicated issues.   

h. Describe the approach you would use to communicate and coordinate with City 
Manager, other contracted staff, public and the media. 

i. Provide at least two examples of complex issues you/your firm has successfully handled 
for municipal or other public agency clients; including the names of the staff members 
who worked on those projects (please include at least one sample staff report.) 

j. Provide a minimum of three (3) client references, at least one (1) of which must be from 
the public sector and one (1) must be peer references on behalf of your firm of a positive 
professional reputation. 

k. Describe what your firm would need to do to be ready and able to begin providing City 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 30 of 64



Planning services to the City of North Plains as of the proposed contract date.  Also 
address how you propose to familiarize your staff with the laws, rules, regulations, and 
operating procedures relative to the conduct of business at the City of North Plains in 
order to be able to efficiently and effectively assume contract responsibility by the 
contract date. 

l. Describe the procedure employed by your firm for identifying when a conflict of interest 
issues arises. State any potential conflict(s) of interest you may have in providing City 
Planning services as outlined in this RFQ. 

m. Provide a proposed hourly rate schedule including all fees, support staff wages where 
applicable, and any other supporting costs. 

n. Provide any other information that you believe is important or relevant to this RFQ. 

 
 
Investigations 
 
The City reserves the right to conduct appropriate investigations into the background, previous 
experience, and training, and related matters of any firm or individual under consideration for 
a contract resulting in successfully completing the RFQ process.  Said investigation may include, 
but are not limited to submission of audited financial statements, communication with 
principal clients, as appropriate, relating to the ability of your firm to successfully perform the 
duties and responsibility of City Planner 
 
 
Evaluation of Requests for Qualifications & Selection 
 
The City reserves the right to accept or reject any and all submissions in the best interest of the 
City. 
 
In connection with the evaluation, the City may, at its option invite one or more applicants to 
make an oral presentation to the selection committee at time and location to be announced 
and may require the submission of supplemental material intended to substantiate or clarify 
information previously submitted. 
 
The following information will be taken into consideration during the evaluation process. 
 
a. Meets all qualifications and requirements identified in this RFQ. 

b. Include complete and clear responses to items in the Content of Response section. 

c. Breadth and relevance of experience of the individuals who will provide services. 

d. The professional reputation on the part of the applicant planner for providing high-
quality services and demonstrating sound judgment, integrity and reliability. 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 31 of 64



e. Familiarity with laws and regulations governing Oregon local governments and operating 
procedures relative to the conduct of city business. 

f. Demonstrated expertise in land use and zoning law as it relates to municipalities. 

g. Demonstration of workload capacity and a level of experience commensurate with the 
level of service required by the City. 

h. The applicant’s ability to work cooperatively with the City Council, City Manager, Planning 
Commission, and members of the business community and general public as 
demonstrated by positive current client references. 

i. Supplemental information submitted by the applicant 

j. Results of the interview, if conducted. 

 
 
Submittal Deadline 
 
One (1) electronic copy of the submission in pdf format, clearly marked “Statement of 
Qualifications for City Planning Services,” must be received by 4:00 p.m., November 4, 2014. 
 

Deliver to:  Martha DeBry, City Manager, City of North Plains, 31360 NW Commercial St, North 
Plains, OR 97133 or martha@northplains.org  

 
Submissions received after that date and time will not be accepted or considered. 
 
Questions regarding responses to this RFQ or request for general information regarding the 
City of North Plains should be directed to Martha DeBry, City manager (503) 647-5555, or 
martha@northplains.org.   

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 32 of 64

mailto:martha@northplains.org


 

Agenda Item No: 9G     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  October 20, 2014 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: September 2014 Check Register 

Background:  At the second City Council meeting of each month staff provides a print 
out of the check register showing the checks that were issued the previous month.  
 
To assist Council with reviewing the check register, the account prefixes for departments 
are below: 
 
110-411 Culture and Recreation 
110-419 General Government 
110-421 Police 
110-433 Public Works 
110-452 Parks 
110-455 Library 
110-465 Planning 
111-000 Streets 
210-000 Water 
130-000 TDT Tax Fund 
131-000 Parks Capital 
132-000 Traffic Impact Fee 
009-000 Vehicle and Equipment Reserve Fund 
113-000 Urban Renewal Agency 
 
There are two types of checks showing on these reports. There are recurring checks 
that were automatically paid to the vendors and checks that are cut for an expense for 
that current month. Council can differentiate between the two by looking at the Check 
Number column. If the check is a five digit number, the check was generated for a one-
time payment. If the check number begins with a zero, it is an automatically generated 
recurring check on a monthly basis. 
 
Fiscal Impact:   The register reflects actual expenses of the City.  All payments to 
vendors, consultants and other agencies are shown on the registers, as well as 
reimbursements to employees. Payroll checks are the only expenses not reflected on 
the register.   
 
Recommendation:  This item is informational only. 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 33 of 64



_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 34 of 64

mreh
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item No: 9G

mreh
Typewritten Text
September 2014 Check Register



_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 35 of 64



_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 36 of 64



_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 37 of 64



_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 38 of 64



_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 39 of 64



_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 40 of 64



_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 41 of 64



_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 42 of 64



_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 43 of 64



_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 44 of 64



_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 45 of 64



_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 46 of 64



_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 47 of 64



_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 48 of 64



_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 49 of 64



_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 50 of 64



 

Agenda Item No: 9H    

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  October 29, 2014 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Fireworks for 2015 Fourth of July Celebration 

Request:  Council discuss funding a fireworks show for July 4, 2015. 
 
Background:  For the past three years the City of North Plains has hosted a fireworks 
show on the 4th of July.  The City contracted for professional services from Western 
Display Fireworks (Canby, Oregon).  In 2012 show cost $12,000.  In 2013 the show 
which featured higher and fewer fireworks cost $12,500.  The 2014 show cost $10,000 
with the high fireworks.  
 
As the City approaches the fourth year of the Fourth of July Celebration a decision 
needs to be made regarding continuing the fireworks show.  Western Displays requests 
confirmation of the date as soon as practical, and a deposit of 25% of the show by 
March, and full payment in July  (Staff has made a tentative reservation that can be 
cancelled.)  Adequate funds are allocated for the 25% deposit, but not for the balance of 
the cost which will be incurred in the 2015-16 budget year. 
 
If Council believes it is likely a fireworks show will be commissioned then staff will sign 
the contract binding the City to a show.  Council can cancel the show up until March 
when the deposit is due. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  Fireworks shows are customized for the customer.  The City can set its 
budget at any amount.  The show’s duration, intensity and height can be adjusted to 
meet the budget.  A minimum cost is $5,000, but can be adjusted upward to any level. 
 
Funding can come from a combination of the General Fund or sponsorships solicited 
from individuals, organizations and businesses.  Past efforts to raise funds for the 4th of 
July from private sources have not been adequate to fund the day’s activities and 
fireworks.  Part of the issue with fundraising is that every community celebrates the 4th 
of July, and support seems limited to North Plains businesses and residents.  In order to 
avoid competition for resources the City has not actively solicited gifts from local 
businesses that traditionally support the Elephant Garlic Festival.  
 
Environmental Issues:  No environmental issues are associated with this item. 
 
Sample Motion:  I move to direct staff to reserve a fireworks show for July 4, 2015, and 
that the funding sources be evaluated prior to March 1, 2015. 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 51 of 64



 

Agenda Item No: 10A     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  October 20, 2014 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Personnel Analysis with History 

Request:  Council review report prepared by Finance Manager Lembo regarding 
personnel costs.  
 
Background:  A personnel analysis with history requested by Mayor at 10/06/14 
meeting.  Data from 2010 to present has been collated.  
 
Fiscal Impact:  Generally, personnel costs have increased slightly while full-time staff 
has been reduced.  The greatest reduction in costs has been in administration, while 
staff providing police and library services has increased.  Public Works costs have 
remained roughly the same, even though staffing was reduced this year.   
 
The General Fund’s expenses have increased as it assumed a larger share of 
personnel expenses.  This reflects increased library and police services since 2011. (It 
should be noted the City had a vacant police position between May 2010 and February 
2011 which skews police expenses in FY 2010 and 2011.)  
 
Water Fund has reduced its overall contribution for personnel services since 2011.  The 
bulk of the reduction in water costs is associated with the reduction of administrative 
staff.   
 
Street fund has assumed a larger role in personnel expenses more accurately reflecting 
time spent in street activities.  In the past these expenses were shared by water and the 
General Fund.   
 
Capital funding has provided less funding for staff in recent years, as the City refrained 
from charging capital funds for projects that did not occur.  
 
Environmental Issues:  None 
 
Recommendation:  This item is informational only. 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 52 of 64



City of North Plains
Personnel Analysis
October 8, 2014

BY DEPARTMENT

FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 budget

General Government 445,219   458,856      341,300   285,544      374,482      318,374           

Public Works 299,143   312,451      314,733   346,058      341,552      329,954           

Police 160,740   165,290      200,144   226,995      265,774      292,410           

Library 66,135     103,776      114,496   137,681      153,238      164,234           

Planning ‐           ‐               12,920     19,143         ‐               ‐                    

Culture & Recreation ‐           ‐               ‐           ‐               8,613           7,765                

971,237   1,040,373   983,593   1,015,421   1,143,659   1,112,737        

BY FUND

FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 budget

General Fund 566,695   615,940      580,405   557,054      634,860      656,769           

Water Fund 315,407   339,095      340,542   335,100      377,325      320,692           

Street Fund 63,850     68,246         60,578     119,211      120,727      97,249              

Capital Project Funds 25,285     17,092         2,068       4,056           10,747         38,027              

971,237   1,040,373   983,593   1,015,421   1,143,659   1,112,737        

Personnel costs make up a significant portion of the City's budget ‐ 42% in FY14‐15 (excluding contingency 
and transfers). Below is historical data from FY10 through the current FY15 budget, both by department 
worked in and by fund charged to. This includes allocations of General Government and Public Works 
personnel costs to Water, Street and capital projects funds. 

 ‐
 200,000
 400,000
 600,000
 800,000

 1,000,000
 1,200,000
 1,400,000

FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 budget

Personnel Costs by Department 

General Government Public Works Police

Library Planning Culture & Recreation

 ‐

 200,000

 400,000

 600,000

 800,000

 1,000,000

 1,200,000

 1,400,000

FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 budget

Personnel Costs by Fund

General Fund Water Fund Street Fund Capital Project Funds

S:\GENERAL\FINANCE DEPT\Budget Reports\FY15\Budget Updates\Personnel Analysis

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 53 of 64

mreh
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item No: 10A



City of North Plains
Personnel Analysis ‐ Position Allocations
October 8, 2014

Position allocations have changed from FY10 through FY15. There has been a decrease in administrative staff and increases in police and library. 

FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15
Gen Govt City Manager City Manager City Manager City Manager City Manager City Manager

City Recorder City Recorder City Recorder outsourced until April City Recorder City Recorder
Finance Director Finance Director Finance Director until Dec outsourced until Jan Finance Manager (PT) Finance Manager (PT)
Account Clerk II Account Clerk II Account Clerk II Account Clerk II Account Clerk II Account Clerk II
Court Clerk Court Clerk Court Clerk Account Clerk II Account Clerk II
Clerical Asst (PT) Clerical Asst (PT) Clerical Asst (PT) Clerical Asst (PT) Clerical Asst (PT) Clerical Asst (PT)
Municipal Judge (PT) Municipal Judge (PT)

Mgmt Analyst (PT)
FTE 6.0                                          6.0                                         5.0                                               4.0                                        5.5                                         4.0                                       

Public Works PW Director PW Director PW Director PW Director PW Director PW Director
Utility Worker III Utility Worker III Utility Worker III Utility Worker III Utility Worker III Utility Worker III
Utility Worker II Utility Worker II Utility Worker II Utility Worker II Utility Worker II Utility Worker II
Utility Worker II Utility Worker II Utility Worker II Utility Worker II Utility Worker II

Skilled Laborer (PT) Skilled Laborer (PT)
Summer Laborers (PT) Summer Laborers (PT) Summer Laborers (PT) Summer Laborers (PT) Summer Laborers (PT)

FTE 4.0                                          4.0                                         4.0                                               4.0                                        4.0                                         3.0                                       

Police Police Chief Police Chief Police Chief Police Chief Police Chief Police Chief
Police Officer Police Officer Police Officer Police Officer Police Officer Police Officer

Police Officer (PT) Police Officer (PT)
Reserves (PT) Reserves (PT) Reserves (PT) Reserves (PT) Reserves (PT) Reserves (PT)

FTE 2.0                                          2.5                                         2.0                                               2.5                                        3.0                                         3.0                                       

Library Library Director (PT) Library Director (PT) Library Director (PT) Library Director (PT) Library Director (PT) Library Director (PT)
Volunteer Coor (PT) Volunteer Coor (PT) Volunteer Coor (PT) Volunteer Coor (PT) Volunteer Coor (PT) Volunteer Coor (PT)

Youth Librarian (PT) Youth Librarian (PT) Youth Librarian (PT)
IT Assistant (PT) IT Assistant (PT) IT Assistant (PT) IT Assistant (PT) IT Assistant (PT) IT Assistant (PT)
Library Clerks (PT) Library Clerks (PT) Library Clerks (PT) Library Clerks (PT) Library Clerks (PT) Library Clerks (PT)

Cataloguer (PT) Cataloguer (PT)
FTE 3.0                                          3.0                                         3.0                                               3.5                                        3.5                                         3.5                                       

Planning Asst Planner (PT) Asst Planner (PT)

Culture & Rec Volunteer Coor (PT) Volunteer Coor (PT)
Event Coordinator (PT)

TOTAL FTE 15.0                                        15.5                                       14.0                                             14.0                                      16.0                                       13.5                                     

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 54 of 64



 

Agenda Item No: 11A     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  October 31, 2014 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Second Reading and Adoption: Ordinance No. 423  
 
Request:  Council consider and adopt Ordinance No. 423 establishing a tax on the sale of 
marijuana and marijuana-infused products.  
 
Background:  The first reading of this ordinance by title only occurred on Wednesday, 
October 29, 2014.  As written the ordinance would impose a 10% tax on recreational 
marijuana and 0% tax on medical marijuana. 
 
Some agencies in Oregon have adopted taxes on marijuana sold at legal dispensaries. The 
thought is that a tax enacted prior to the November 4 election will not be subject to 
Proposition 91, which specifically prohibit taxes on marijuana sales.  Other local agencies 
that enacted a tax include Cornelius, Forest Grove, and Hillsboro.  Banks City Council 
recently declined to adopt a similar ordinance.  
 
Fiscal Impact:  There is no immediate fiscal impact associated with this ordinance, as there 
are no marijuana dispensaries in the community.  Should a dispensary be located here in 
the future it would be subject to the tax if adopted. 
 
Environmental Issues:  None 
 
Recommendation:  Council read Ordinance No. 423 by title only for the second time and 
adopt the ordinance. 
 

Sample Motions: 
1. I move to read Ordinance No. 423 by title only for the second time. 

 
Mayor to read title: Ordinance No. 423 – An ordinance of the City Council of the City of 
North Plains, Oregon, establishing a tax on the sale of marijuana and marijuana-infused 
products in the city of north plains and adding a new north plains municipal code subchapter 
2.30. 

2. I move to adopt Ordinance No. 423. 
 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 55 of 64



ORDINANCE NO. 423 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, 
OREGON, ESTABLISHING A TAX ON THE SALE OF MARIJUANA AND 

MARIJUANA-INFUSED PRODUCTS IN THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS AND ADDING 
A NEW NORTH PLAINS MUNICIPAL CODE SUBCHAPTER 2.30. 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter II “Powers,” Section 5 of the North Plains City Charter 

provides: 
 
Powers. The city has all powers that the constitutions, statutes and common 

law of the United States and Oregon expressly or impliedly grant or allow the city, as 
fully as though this charter specifically enumerated each of those powers. 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to tax the sale or transfer of marijuana and marijuana- 

infused products within the City. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.  A new Subchapter 2.30 Marijuana and Marijuana-Infused Products 
Tax establishing a tax on the sale of marijuana and marijuana-infused products is 
hereby added to Chapter 2 “Finance” of the North Plains Municipal Code as follows: 

 
2.30.010   Purpose 

For the purposes of NPMC 2.30, every person who sells marijuana, medical 
marijuana or marijuana-infused products in the city is exercising a taxable privilege. 
The purpose of NPMC 2.30 is to impose a tax upon the retail sale of marijuana, medical 
marijuana and marijuana- infused products. 

 
2.30.020   Definitions 

When not clearly otherwise indicated by the context, the following words and 
phrases as used in NPMC 2.30 have the following meanings: 

 
DIRECTOR means the finance manager or his/her designee. 
 
GROSS TAXABLE SALES means the total amount received in money, credits, 

property or other consideration from sales of marijuana, medical marijuana and marijuana-
infused products that is subject to the tax imposed by NPMC 2.30. 

 
MARIJUANA means all parts of the plant of the Cannabis family Moraceae, 

whether growing or not; the resin extracted from any part of the plant; and every 
compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the plant or its resin, 
as may be defined by Oregon Revised Statutes as they currently exist or may from time 
to time be amended. It does not include the mature stalks of the plant, fiber produced from 
the stalks, oil or cake made from the seeds of the plant, any other compound, 
manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the mature stalks (except the 
resin extracted there from), fiber, oil, or cake, or the sterilized seed of the plant which is 
incapable of germination. 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 56 of 64



 
OREGON MEDICAL MARIJUANA PROGRAM means the office within the Oregon 

Health Authority that administers the provisions of ORS 475.300 through 475.346, the 
Oregon Medical Marijuana Act, and all policies and procedures pertaining thereto. 

 
PERSON means natural person, joint venture, joint stock company, partnership, 

association, club, company, corporation, business, trust, organization, or any group or 
combination acting as a unit, including the United States of America, the state and any 
political subdivision thereof, or the manager, lessee, agent, servant, officer or employee 
of any of them. 

 
PURCHASE OR SALE means the retail acquisition or furnishing for 

consideration by any person of marijuana within the city and does not include the 
acquisition or furnishing of marijuana by a grower or processor to a seller. 

 
REGISTRY IDENTIFICATION CARDHOLDER means a person who has been 

diagnosed by an attending physician with a debilitating medical condition and for whom 
the use of medical marijuana may mitigate the symptoms or effects of the person's 
debilitating medical condition, and who has been issued a registry identification card by 
the Oregon Health Authority. 

 
RETAIL SALE means the transfer of goods or services in exchange for any 

valuable consideration and does not include the transfer or exchange of goods or 
services between a grower or processor and a seller. 

 
SELLER means any person who is required to be licensed or has been licensed 

by the state  to  provide  marijuana  or  marijuana-infused  products  to  purchasers  for  
money,  credit, property or other consideration. 

 
TAX means either the tax payable by the seller or the aggregate amount of taxes 

due from a seller during the period for which the seller is required to report collections 
under NPMC 2.30. 

 
TAXPAYER means any person obligated to account to the director for taxes 

collected or to be collected, or from whom a tax is due, under the terms of NPMC 2.30. 
 
2.30.030 Levy of tax 

A. Every seller exercising the taxable privilege of selling marijuana and 
marijuana-infused products as defined in NPMC 2.30 is subject to and must pay a tax for 
exercising that privilege. 

 
B. The amount of tax levied is as follows: 
 

1. Zero percent of the gross sale amount paid to the seller of 
marijuana and marijuana-infused products by a person who is a 
registry identification cardholder. 

 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 57 of 64



2. Ten percent of the gross sale amount paid to the seller of 
marijuana and marijuana infused products by persons who are 
purchasing marijuana and marijuana-infused products but are not 
doing so under the provisions of the Oregon Medical Marijuana 
Program. 

 
2.30.040   Deductions 

The following deductions are allowed against sales received by the seller providing 
marijuana: 

A. Refunds of sales actually returned to any purchaser; 
 

B. Any adjustments in sales that amount to a refund to a purchaser, 
providing such adjustment pertains to the actual sale of marijuana or marijuana-infused 
products and does not include any adjustments for other services furnished by a seller. 

 
2.30.050   Seller responsible for payment of tax 

A. Every seller must, on or before the last day of the month following the 
end of each calendar quarter (in the months of April, July, October and January) make a 
return to the director, on forms provided by the city, specifying the total sales subject to 
NPMC 2.30 and the amount of tax collected under NPMC 2.30.  The seller may request 
or the director may establish shorter reporting periods for any seller if the seller or director 
deems it necessary in order to ensure collection of the tax.  The director may require 
further information in the return relevant to payment of the tax.  A return is not considered 
filed until it is actually received by the director. 

 
B. At the time the return is filed, the seller must remit to the director the 

full amount of the tax collected.  Payments received by the director for application against 
existing liabilities will be credited toward the period designated by the taxpayer under 
conditions that are not prejudicial to the interest of the city.  A condition considered 
prejudicial is the imminent expiration of the statute of limitations for a period or periods. 

 
C. The city will apply non-designated payments in the order of the 

oldest liability first, with the payment credited first toward any accrued penalty, then to 
interest, then to the underlying tax until the payment is exhausted. Crediting of a payment 
toward a specific reporting period will be first applied against any accrued penalty, then to 
interest, then to the underlying tax. 

 
D. If the director, in his or her sole discretion, determines that an 

alternative order of payment application would be in the best interest of the city in a 
particular tax or factual situation, the director may order such a change. The director may 
establish shorter reporting periods for any seller if the director deems it necessary in order 
to ensure collection of the tax. The director also may require additional information in the 
return relevant to payment of the liability. When a shorter return period is required, 
penalties and interest will be computed according to the shorter return period. Returns 
and payments are due immediately upon cessation of business for any reason. Sellers 
must hold in trust all taxes collected pursuant to NPMC 2.30 for the city’s account until 
the seller makes payment to the director. A separate trust bank account is not required 
in order to comply with this provision. 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 58 of 64



 
E. Every seller required to remit the tax imposed by NPMC 2.30 is 

entitled to retain five percent of all taxes due to the city to defray the costs of bookkeeping 
and remittance. 

 
F. Every seller must keep and preserve in an accounting format 

established by the director records of all sales made by the seller and such other books 
or accounts as the director may be require. Every seller must keep and preserve for a 
period of three years all such books, invoices and other records. The director has the right 
to inspect all such records at all reasonable times. 

 
2.30.060   Penalties and interest 

A. Any seller who fails to remit any portion of any tax imposed by NPMC 
2.30 within the time required must pay a penalty of 10 percent of the amount of the tax, in 
addition to the amount of the tax. 

 
B. If any seller fails to remit any delinquent remittance on or before a 

period of 60 days following the date on which the remittance first became delinquent, 
the seller must pay a second delinquency penalty of 10 percent of the amount of the 
tax in addition to the amount of the tax and the penalty first imposed. 

 
C. If  the  director  determines  that the  nonpayment  of  any  remittance  

due under NPMC 2.30 is due to fraud, a penalty of 25 percent of the amount of the tax 
will be added thereto in addition to the penalties stated in NPMC 2.30.060A and NPMC 
2.30.060B. 

 
D. In addition to the penalties imposed, any seller who fails to remit any 

tax imposed by NPMC 2.30 must pay interest at the rate one percent per month or fraction 
thereof on the amount of the tax, exclusive of penalties, from the date on which the 
remittance first became delinquent until paid. 

 
E. Every penalty imposed, and any interest as accrues under the 

provisions of NPMC 2.30.060, becomes a part of the tax required to be paid. 
 
F. All sums collected pursuant to the penalty provisions in NPMC 

2.30.060A and NPMC 2.30.060C will be distributed to the city’s general fund. 
 
G. Penalties for certain late tax payments may be waived or reduced 

pursuant to policies and processes adopted by the finance department.  However, the 
finance department is not required to create a penalty waiver or reduction policy.  If the 
finance department does not create a policy for waivers or reductions, no waivers or 
reductions are allowed. 

 
2.30.070  Failure to report and remit tax – determination of tax by director 

A. If any seller fails to make any report of the tax required by NPMC 
2.30 within the time provided in NPMC 2.30, the director will proceed to obtain facts and 
information on which to base the estimate of tax due. As soon as the director procures 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 59 of 64



such facts and information upon which to base the assessment of any tax imposed by 
NPMC 2.30 and payable by any seller, the director will determine and assess against such 
seller the tax, interest and penalties provided for by NPMC 2.30. 

 
B. If the director makes a determination as outlined in NPMC 2.30.070A, 

the director must give notice to the seller of the amount assessed.  The notice must be 
personally served on the seller or deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, 
addressed to the seller at the last known place of address. 

 
C. The seller may appeal the determination as provided in NPMC 

2.30.080. If no appeal is timely filed, the director's determination is final and the amount 
assessed is immediately due and payable. 

 
2.30.080   Appeal 

A. Any seller aggrieved by any decision of the director with respect to 
the amount of the tax owed along with interest and penalties, if any, may appeal the 
decision to the manager. 

 
B. The seller must file the appeal within 30 days of the city’s serving 

or mailing of the determination of tax due.  The seller must file using forms provided by 
the city. 

 
C. Upon receipt of the appeal form, the manager will schedule a 

hearing to occur within 20 business days. The manager will give the seller notice of the 
time and date for the hearing no less than seven days before the hearing date.  At the 
hearing the manager will hear and consider any records and evidence presented bearing 
upon the director's determination of amount due and make findings affirming, reversing or 
modifying the determination. The director and the appellant may both provide written and 
oral testimony during the hearing.  The findings of the manager are final and conclusive.  
The city will serve the findings upon the appellant in the manner prescribed above for 
service of notice of hearing. Any amount found to be due is immediately due and payable 
upon the service of notice. 

 
2.30.090   Refunds 

A. The city may refund to the seller any tax, interest or penalty amount 
under any of the following circumstances: 

 
1. The seller has overpaid the correct amount of tax, interest or penalty; or 
 
2. The seller has paid more than once for the correct amount owed; or 
 
3. The city has erroneously collected or received any tax, interest or 

penalties. 
 

B. The city may not issue a refund under NPMC 2.30.090 unless the 
seller provides to the director a written claim under penalty of perjury stating the specific 
grounds upon which the claim is founded and on forms furnished by the director.  The 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 60 of 64



seller must file the claim within one year from the date of the alleged incorrect payment 
to be eligible for a refund. 

 
C. The director has 20 calendar days from the date of the claim’s 

receipt to review the claim and make a written determination as to its validity. After making 
the determination, the director will notify the claimant in writing of the determination by 
mailing notice to the claimant at the address provided on the claim form. 

 
D. If the director determines the claim is valid, the claimant may 

either claim a refund or take as credit against taxes collected and remitted the amount 
that was overpaid, paid more than once, or erroneously received or collected by the city.  
The claimant must notify the director of the claimant’s choice no later than 15 days 
following the date the director mailed the determination and the claimant must do so in a 
manner prescribed by the director. 

 
E. If the claimant does not notify the director of the claimant's choice 

within the 15 day period and the claimant is still in business, the city will grant a credit 
against the tax liability for the next reporting period.  If the claimant is no longer in 
business, the city will mail a refund check to claimant at the address provided in the claim 
form. 

 
F. The city will not pay a refund unless the claimant establishes by 

written records the right to a refund and the director acknowledges the claim’s validity. 
 
2.30.100   Actions to collect 

Any tax required to be paid by any seller under the provisions of NPMC 2.30 is 
a debt owed by the seller to the city. Any tax collected by a seller that has not been paid 
to the city is a debt owed by the seller to the city. Any person owing money to the city 
under the provisions of NPMC 2.30 is liable to an action brought in the name of the City 
of North Plains for the recovery of the amount owing. In lieu of filing an action for the 
recovery, the city, when taxes due are more than 30 days delinquent, may submit any 
outstanding tax to a collection agency. So long as the city  has  complied  with  the  
provisions  set  forth  in  ORS  697.105,  if  the  city  turns  over  a delinquent tax account 
to a collection agency, it may add to the amount owing an amount equal to the collection 
agency fees, not to exceed the greater of $50 or 50 percent of the outstanding tax, 
penalties and interest owing. 

 
2.30.110   Violation infractions 

A. All violations of NPMC 2.30 are punishable as set forth in NPMC 
1.08. It is a violation of NPMC 2.30 for any seller or other person to: 

 
1) Fail or refuse to comply as required herein; 

2) Fail or refuse to furnish any return required to be made; 

3) Fail or refuse to permit inspection of records; 

4) Fail or refuse to furnish a supplemental return or other data 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 61 of 64



required by the director; 

5) Render a false or fraudulent return or claim; or 

6) Fail, refuse or neglect to remit the tax to the city by the due date. 

B. The remedies provided by NPMC 2.30 are not exclusive and do not 
prevent the city from exercising any other remedy available under the law. 

 
C. The remedies provided by this section do not prohibit or restrict the 

city or other appropriate prosecutor from pursuing criminal charges under state law or 
city ordinance. 

 
2.30.120   Confidentiality 

Except as otherwise required by law, it is unlawful for the city, any officer, employee 
or agent to divulge, release or make known in any manner any financial information 
submitted or disclosed to the city under the terms of NPMC 2.30. Nothing in NPMC 
2.30.120 prohibits any of the following: 

 
A. The disclosure of the names and addresses of any person who is 

operating a licensed establishment from which marijuana is sold or provided; or 
 
B. The disclosure of general statistics in a form which would not reveal 

an individual seller’s financial information; or 
 
C. Presentation of evidence to the court, or other tribunal having 

jurisdiction in the prosecution of any criminal or civil claim by the director or an appeal 
from the director for amount due the city under NPMC 2.30; or 

 
D. The disclosure of information when such disclosure of conditionally 

exempt information is ordered under public records law procedures; or 
 
E. The disclosure of records related to a business' failure to report and 

remit the tax when the report or tax is in arrears for over six months or when the tax 
exceeds $5,000. The council expressly finds that the public interest in disclosure of such 
records clearly outweighs the interest in confidentiality under ORS 192.501(5). 

 
2.30.130   Audit of books, records or persons 

The city may examine or may cause to be examined by an agent or representative 
designated by the city for that purpose, any books, papers, records, or memoranda, 
including copies of seller's state and federal income tax return, bearing upon the matter 
of the seller's tax return for the purpose of determining the correctness of any tax return, 
or for the purpose of an estimate of taxes due.  All books, invoices, accounts and other 
records must be made available within the city limits and be open at any time during 
regular business hours for examination by the director or an authorized agent of the 
director.  If any taxpayer refuses to voluntarily furnish any of the foregoing information 
when requested, the director may immediately seek a subpoena from the municipal court 
to require that the taxpayer or a representative of the taxpayer attend a hearing or produce 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 62 of 64



any such books, accounts and records for examination. 
 
2.30.140   Forms and regulations 

A. The director is authorized to prescribe forms and promulgate rules 
and regulations to aid in the making of returns, the ascertainment, assessment and 
collection of the marijuana tax and to provide for: 

 
1. A form of report on sales and purchases to be supplied to all 

vendors; 
 
2. The records that sellers providing marijuana and marijuana-

infused products must keep concerning the tax imposed by 
NPMC 2.30. 

 
Section 2. Severability. The sections, subsections, paragraphs and clauses of 

this ordinance are severable. The invalidity of one section, subsection, paragraph, or 
clause does not affect the validity of the remaining sections, subsections, paragraphs 
and clauses. 

 
Section 3. Savings. Notwithstanding any amendment/repeal, the City 

ordinances in existence at the time any criminal or civil enforcement actions were 
commenced, remain valid and in full force and effect for purposes of all cases filed or 
commenced during the times this ordinance or portions thereof were operative.  This 
section simply clarifies the existing situation that nothing in this ordinance affects the 
validity of prosecutions commenced and continued under the laws in effect at the time 
the matters were originally filed. 

 
Section 4. This ordinance shall be effective from and after 30 days 

following its adoption by the Council and approval by the Mayor. 
 

INTRODUCED on the 29th day of October, 2014, AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of 
November, 2014. 
 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 
 
By:  _______________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
By:  _______________________________________ 

Margaret Reh, City Recorder 

_____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 63 of 64



November 2014 Council Calendar 
 

Meeting Primary Alternate Note Date 

City Council  
7:00 p.m. at North Plains 
Senior Center 

11/03 

First Friday Flick at Jessie Mays Community Hall! 
Movie in the Hall 6:00 p.m. 11/07 

Country Dance Fundraiser for 
Food Pantry Canopy  Saturday @ Jessie Mays 7:30 

p.m. to 11:00 p.m. 11/08 

Washington County 
Coordinating Committee 
(WCCC) 

Hatcher DeBry 2nd Monday @  12 noon 11/10 

Planning Commission Lenahan  2nd Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 11/12 

Washington County Office of 
Community Development 
Policy Advisory Board 

Kindel Demagalski 2nd Thursday @ 7 p.m. 11/13 

City Council   7:00 p.m. at North Plains 
Senior Center 

11/17 

Parks Board  
Wednesday @ 6 p.m. (moved 
a week earlier due to 
Thanksgiving Holiday) 

11/19 

Library Board (CANCELLED) Newton  3rd Wednesday @ 7:30 p.m. 11/19 

Metro Policy Advisory 
Committee (MPAC) Hatcher  4th Wednesday @ 5 p.m. 11/26 

Thanksgiving Holiday   Thursday: City Offices Closed 11/27 

Thanksgiving Holiday   Friday: City Offices Closed 11/28 

Metropolitan Area 
Communications Commission 
(MACC) 

DeBry Demagalski  
 
 
 

The Jingle Thru North Plains   
Thursday @ 6:30 at Jessie 
Mays  

12/04 

 _____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 64 of 64


	4A 110314 Preliminary Agenda
	4B 100614 City Council Minutes
	4B 102914 City Council Minutes-SPECIAL SESSION
	5Ab Public Works Director Report to City Council 2014 11-03
	5Ac Library Director Report to City Council 2014 11-03
	9A Memo garden club
	9B Memo Jingle thru North Plains
	9C Memo Crab Feed Waiving fees
	9D Memo Property Tax Comparisons
	9Da FY14-15 Property Tax and History
	9E Memo Res. No. 1856 surplus generator and cart
	9E Resolution No 1856 Surplus
	9F Memo Planning RFQ
	9F Planning Expenses and Consultant fees 2004-2014
	9F Planning fees 2014
	9F RFQ for Planning Services
	9G Memo Check Register Explanation
	9G September 2014 Check Register
	9H Memo Fireworks at 4th of July Celebration
	10A Memo Personnel Analysis with History
	10A Personnel Analysis
	11A Ordinance No. 423 Taxation of MARIJAUNA ORDINANCE
	13B Calendar November 2014



